UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

JACK McBRIDE, on behdf of himsdf and dl C.A. No.
others amilarly stuated,

Hantiff,
CLASSACTION
V. COMPLAINT
COMPUTER ASSOCIATES
INTERNATIONAL INC., CHARLESB. Haintiff Demands

WANG, SANJAY KUMAR, and IRA H. ZAR, | Trid By Jury
Defendants.

Faintiff, by hisundersgned atorneys, dleges, uponinformation and belief (said information
and belief being based, in part, upon the investigation conducted by and through his attorney), except with
respect to paragraph 16, which is alleged upon persond knowledge, as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1 Thisisasecuritiesfraud class action brought on behdf of investorsin securities of
Computer Associates, Inc. ("CA™ or the"Company") between May 28, 1999, and February 25, 2002 (the
"ClassPeriod"). Membersof the Classasdefined, infra, include, in particular, purchasersof CA common
stock and call options during the Class Period, and sdllers of CA put options during the Class Period
(collectively referred to as"CA securities'). Defendants are CA, its Chairman, CEO and Executive Vice
President.

2. The computersfor which CA made software, mainframe computers, are obsolete
and are being replaced by more modern hardware (such asdient- server networks), referred to generdly as
Adigtributed systems.i Since mainframes are being replaced, software for these machinesis losing market
share to didtributed systems. The impact on CA's revenue has been severe. This impact has been

meagnified because CA had aways used aggressive accounting to recognize revenue fromitssoftwaresales
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immediately, rather than over time, S0 that a decrease in sdesisimmediately reflected by asharp dropin
revenue. The defendants engaged in aschemeto hidethe disastrous effect this had on Company revenue.

3. Firdt, beginning prior to May, 1999, the Company fasdy indicated that it had
penetrated the distributed systems market. The Company gave away itsdistributed system software free,
or a nomind additiona cogt, to customers who were aso extending mainframe software licenses, and
attributed large portions of the resulting revenue to the non-mainframe products.

4. Second, beginning prior to May, 1999 and ending in October, 2000, when the
Company extended a license during its term, it recognized revenue for the entire new license. Until June,
2000, when CA began using new auditors, CA did not "back out” the revenue from the unexpired portion
of the old license, double-counting thisrevenue. After June, 2000, CA began backing out thisfigurein an
obscurelineitem -- but never disclosed that thistrick had caused their revenue to be overstated by more
than one hundred million dollars each quarter prior June, 2000.

5. Third, to hide a disastrous drop in revenue as measured by Generdly Accepted
Accounting Principles ("GAAP"), the defendants announced a "new business modd," which they
represented involved offering more flexible licensing terms to customers.

6. In fact, the "new business modd" was a cover to inditute new, non-GAAP
compliant accounting (which the Company caled "pro forma, pro ratd’ ), and to obscure the fact that the
switch from long-term licenses to flexible subscriptions was not a pro-active move, but a symptom of the
obsolescence of CA=smain product line. Whilethe stated god of theAnew business modeli wasto provide
customers moreflexibleterms, thereal purposewasto cover up thefact that CA could no longer get many
of their mainframe customersto purchase thelong-termlicences of mainframe softwarewhich have beenthe
Company=s mainday.

7. After the announcement of the "new business modd" in October, 2000, the
Company issued press releases hera ding moderate growth, though the GAAP figures showed arevenue

decrease of nearly Sixty percent.
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8. The"proforma, proratd’ method counted revenue from old license salesin current
and future periods, usng old revenues to buttress the current, deteriorating saes. Defendants have
attempted to have their cake and et it, too: in astrong economy, CA recognized dl the revenuefrom its
sdesimmediatdy, even double-counting some revenue, showing impressive numbers. Now, in asagging
economy, they have obscured theredl 1oss of sales by changing to amethod of accounting so back-|oaded
that it does not conform to GAAP. TheApro forma, pro rataj method aso did not make the digtinctions
between product and service revenue required by GAAP, obscuring the distinction and further hiding the
deterioration in sales.

0. CA hascontinued to report its GAAPfigures, asitisrequired by the Securitiesand
Exchange Commission ("SEC") todo. Incredibly, defendantshavefdsdy stated that the GAAPfiguresare
not reflective of the Company's financid position, and that the "pro forma, pro rata’ figures do accuratdy
reflect the Company'sfinancid postion.

10.  The Company's true condition, however, is shown by the conduct of defendants
during the Class Period. After announcing the "new business modd™ but before reporting under it for the
firs time, and contrary to the Company's representations that the rosy picture created by the "pro forma,
pro rata' figures was an accurate portraya of the Company's postion, the defendants engineered a
clandedtine, firm-wide layoff, hiding the terminations as individud performance-based firings. They fired
possibly asmany as athousand employeeswith no severance package, and continueto deny that thefirings
were alayoff, even though executives involved in the layoff have confirmed it to the New York Times (as
reported on March 20, 2001). More recently, the Company was forced to withdraw a planned debt
offering after Moody:-s questioned the qudity of the Company-s credit. As aresult, CA admits, it was
forced to draw down $600 million on one credit line to pay another.

11.  Thedesperate cost- cutting by secret layoff, use of its new unrecognized accounting
just when its revenue has dropped sharply, and the use of credit linesto service existing debt, demonstrate
that defendants are keenly aware of the precarious financia condition of the Company, and have

deliberatdy midead the investing public.
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12.  Themideading picturethe Company has presented has not gone unquestioned. On
February 22, 2002, the Company confirmed that it was aware that both the Securities Exchange
Commission and the Federd Bureau of Investigation wereinvestigating the Company-saccounting for civil,
and in the case of the FBI, crimina violations. News of the crimind and civil probes, which began to
surface on February 20, caused investorsto flee the stock, which fell from a February 19 closing price of
$25.31 to a February 22 close of $15.99, adrop of 36.8%.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13. (3@ The claims dleged herein arise under sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Securitiesand Exchange Act of 1934 (the"Exchange Act’), 15 U.S.C. Section 78(i)(b), 78(t) and 78t-1(a)
and pendent common law clams.

(b) Jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action is conferred upon this
Court by Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. Section 78aa, 28 U.S.C. Section 1331 and 28
U.S.C. 1307.

14.  ThisCourt haspersond jurisdiction over defendants pursuant to Section 27 of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. Section 78aa.

15. In connection with the actsaleged herein, the defendantsdirectly or indirectly, used
the means and instrumentdities of interstate commerce, including the U.S. mails and facilities of anationd
securities exchange.

PARTIES

16. Plaintiff purchased shares of CA common stock during the Class Period as per the
annexed certificate.

17. Defendant CA is a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Delaware. The Company's principa executive offices arelocated withinthis Didtrict at
One Computer Associates Plaza, Idandia, New York 11788-7000. CA designs, develops, markets,
licenses and supports awide range of integrated computer software products.

Thelndividual Defendants
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18. Defendant Charles B. Wang ("Wang") was CA's Chief Executive Officer from
1976 to July 2000, and remains Chairman of its Board, a post he has held since 1980.

19. Defendant Sanjay Kumar ("Kumar") isCA's Chief Executive Officer. HewasCA's
President and Chief Operating Officer from January 1994 to July, 2000. He wasthe Company's Executive
Vice President of Operations from January 1993 to December 1993, Senior Vice President of Planning
from April 1989 to December 1992 and Vice President of Planning from November 1988 to March 1989.

20. Defendant IraH. Zar ("Zar") isthe Company's Executive Vice Presdent of Finance
and Chief Financia Officer. Messrs. Wang, Kumar, and Zar are sometimesreferred to herein collectively
asthe"Individud Defendants”

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

21.  CA higtoricaly employed very aggressive software accounting, booking revenue
from renewa s of old license agreements up front asamatter of course, and pursuing apolicy of acquisition
which, together with its revenue recognition techniques, produced very high revenuefiguresin recent years.

22. However, CA's core product was software for mainframe computers, which are
being replaced by more modern computer hardware, such as so-caled "dient-server” networks. These
newer systems are referred to by the umbrellaterm Adistributed systems.g

23. Faced with the erosion of its core market, the Company employed a schemeto
obscure the downward trend, and the resulting collapse of the Company-ssdes. Firgt, beginning not later
than May, 1999, CA created theimpression that itsrevenue growth was sustainable, by fasdy claming that
the Company had trangitioned from its mainframe core businessto sdlling software for distributed systems.

24.  Starting at the same time, the Company aso boosted its revenue by extending
contractsinthemiddle of their term, booking dl the revenue from the new sale of asoftwarelicense, but not
writing down the revenue from the overlapping period for which the Company had recognized revenue
under theold license. Thistactic double- counted revenuefor the overlapin thelicense periods. CA did not

begin to write down the overlap in licenses until June, 2000, when the Company began using new auditors.
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25. Finaly, to hide the disastrous drop which has accompanied the contraction in its
sdes, the Company indtituted a Anew business model involving saes of flexible subscription agreements
indeed of fixed-term licenses. This Anew business modeli covered the Company:singhility to continue
sling long-term licenses for mainframe software. To permit the Company to perform this maneuver
without derting the market to the actud deterioration initsfinancia condition, the Company began releasing
non-GAAP compliant financid results, which used revenue booked in prior periodsto obscure adramatic
drop in new sales.

CA'sHistorical Accounting Practices

26.  Asfurther described below, CA'shistorical accounting practice wasto "re-rall”
contracts, counting the extension of old licensesasnew sales, and recognizing dl or nearly dl of therevenue
immediatedly. CA aso used the re-ralling technique with licenses to customers of newly acquired
companies, extending the licenses of the companiesit had just purchased and recognizing the sde as new
revenue.

27.  AstheNew York Times reported on April 29, 2001

By categorizing fees as related to licenses, ingead of maintenance,

Computer Associates could inflateits revenuesin any given quarter, a the

expense of future quarters. And, subject to outside auditors approval, it

had considerable discretion over whether to classfy fees as license or

maintenance.
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28. Using thismodd, CA posted impressive revenue numbers.
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29. Furthermore, under thismodd, CA managed to recognize far more of its revenue
immediately than is typicd for software companies, and recorded far less maintenance revenue as a
proportion of itstotal. Asthe New York Times reported on April 29, 2001 (Business Section, Front

Page):
.. .overdl revenue skyrocketed, as the company made severd mgor
acquigtions. Infiscd 2000, itsoverdl revenuesreached $6.1 billion, more
than triple the level seven years earlier.

Y et over the same period, maintenance revenue grew only 30 percent, to
$877 million. Asaresult, in fisca 2000, maintenance accounted for only
14 percent of revenue.

Put another way, Computer Associates maintenance rose only $200
millionin seven years, even though two companiesit bought over that span
-- Legent and Sterling Software -- had each reported more than $200
million in maintenance revenue in the last year they were independent.

30. For at least ten years, CA employed the re-rolling technique, recognizing revenue
immediately from the sde of licenses with durations as long as ten years. Again, the New York Times

explained succinctly:
For a least a decade, the company has taken full advantage of that
discretion, former employees say. When Computer Associates bought
other software vendors, it would try to persuadetheir existing cusomersto
"rerall," or extend, their license and maintenance agreementsfor aslong as
10years. It then classified most of the feesfrom the extended agreements
as new license revenue and booked it immediately.

31.  CA'suseof thistechniqueisconfirmed by its own former employees, speaking to

the New Y ork Times on condition of anonymity:

"Therés a dirty little truth about the mainframe business,” sad a former
Computer Associates executive who worked in its interBiz divison.
"Theré's not a whole lot of new mainframes going in, so a lot of what's
being booked as new revenueistaking an existing contract that's expiring
and adding yearson to it. It'srerolling a contract.”

32.  CA pursued a vigorous policy of expangon in the 1990's, buying nearly every
independent maker of mainframe software, and in the process becoming the world's fourth largest

independent software company.
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33.  When CA purchased acompany, it would attempt to extend their exigting software
contracts. When it was successful in doing so, Computer Associates would recognize the extenson as
though it werethe sale of anew license, and would accordingly recognize the revenue asalump suminthe
quarter the dedl was signed.

Wrap-and-Rall

34. The hardware for which CA hashigoricaly made software, mainframe computers,
are rgpidly losing market share to distributed systems.

35. Recognizing this, CA attempted to move into making software for nort manframe
systems.

36.  Thismove hasfailed, afact which the Company has conceded.

37. In order to buoy the sales of |less successful non-mainframe software packages, CA
would include these productsat little or no additiona cost with mainframe software that its customers were
willing to pay for.

38.  Theprimeexampleof thispracticeisthe CA product Unicenter TNG ("Unicenter™).

39. Unicenter is a software product which is supposed to alow the user to control an
enterprisess entire computer network, distributed across many different types of computers.

40. Unicenter has failed to attract many adherents, due partly to its complexity, and
partly to strong enmity towards CA from users of the client-server systems Unicenter is madefor. Inthe
words of industry analyst Herbert VanHook of Meta Group, asreported inthe New Y ork Timeson April
29, 2001, Unicenter is"pretty hard to find in the wild."

41.  CA'sJasmineii, another non-mainframe product, hassmilarly failed tofind auser
base, according to the April 29 Times article.

42. Dexpite the fact that very few customers are actudly using its nortmainframe
software, CA reports that non-mainframe products accounted for approximately haf the Company's
product revenue in 2000.
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43. Former CA employees, again speaking anonymoudly to the New York Times

(reported April 29, 2001), explained the paradox:

It may appear paradoxicd that customerswould pay for softwarethat did

not work. The explanation, former employeesand andysts say, isthat the

company often offered Unicenter freein the maintenancererallsit offered.

In dedls cdlled "wrap and rolls" it would then dlocate a portion of the

revenue to Unicenter, enabling it to show sales growth to Wall Street.

"Sometimesthe ded sthat were made, if you're using these products, we're

going to throw thisinfor freg," Ms. Scott [Donna Scott, an industry analyst

with Gartner Group] said. "It doesn't mean it'sgoing to get implemented.”

44.  On April 30,2001, CA made available on itsweb site a seven page response to
the Timesarticle of April 29, dismissng theTimesarticlein the strongest termsasinaccurate and untrue. In
that response, CA argued that its Unicenter product was in fact used by many of the companies that
purchased it, but did not deny that Unicenter and other distributed systems software was included with
extensons of mainframe software licenses, a little or no additiona cod.

45.  Theéeffect of the"wrgp androll” contractswasto create the mideading impresson
that there was demand for the Company's non- mainframe products, and thet they were sdling on their own,
being implemented and gaining momentum.

Double-Counting Revenue
From Re-Rolled Contracts

46. From at least May 28, 1999, through the rel ease of its 2000 Form 10-K on June9,
2000, the Company reported revenues from new license agreements in violation of GAAP. When the
Company re-rolled alicenseduring itsterm, the license revenuefor the entire new contract was recognized.
However, no charge was taken for the portion of the old contract remaining when the license was
extended. Sincethe entire license fee had been recognized at the outset for that origina term, recognizing
the new contract without deduction effectively double-counted the overlap between the two terms.

47. By way of example, if adient with afive-year license sgned aten-year ded inyear

three of its origina contract, the entire ten-year fee was booked by CA. However, the entirefive year fee
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had been booked at the sgning of thefive-year license. CA had recogni zed fifteen years of licensefeeson
athirteen year tota license, double-counting the two years of unexpired license on the old contract.

48. In duly, 2000, the Company changed the practice. Beginning intheFirst Quarter of
Fiscal 2000, the period ended June 30, 2000, the Company backed out the double-counted revenue,
cdlingit "Expanded Contract Cost." CA'sForms 10-Q from July 2000 until the"new businessmodd™ was
adopted reported "net revenue,” but gave a parentheticd, larger number for the "contract vaue" The
"contract value" isthe total face value of the contracts, the number which was reported as revenue during
Fisca 1999 and 2000. The Company's pressrel easesinclude both "' net revenue’ and “tota contract vaue'
in the table or results of operations, listing the difference as " expanded contract cost.”

49.  Theexact amount of the misrepresentation is known only for Fisca Year ("FY™)
2000, because the Company recalculated the FY 2000 quarterly figuresfor comparison withits FY 2001
quarterly figures. The recaculated numbers, with the double-counted revenue diminated, appear in the
Company's Form 10-Q filingsfor thefirgt, second the third quarters of FY 2001. Comparing the revised
figures for those filed with the SEC for the interim quarters of FY 2000, it is gpparent that the double-
counted revenue, anounting to hundreds of millions, wasincluded in dl the Company'srevenuefiguresprior
to thefiling of the 2000 Form 10-K.

50.  Thetablebelow showsthefiguresorigindly reported asrevenuein the Company's
FY 2000 pressreleases, and the figures for the same periods recal cul ated to exclude the double- counting,
as given in the respective Forms 10-Q for the 2001 Fisca Year.

51.  CA changed auditorsfor the 2000 annud audit. The Company had previoudy used
Erngt & Young as its auditors, but KPMG performed the 2000 year-end audit, and has audited CA's

books since. Despite using the double-counting figures for dl its interim reportsin FY 2000, the 2000
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Form 10-K Consolidated Statement of Operations, for thefirst time, lists" Contract Vaue' separately from
revenue, and calls revenue "Net Revenue.”

52. In the interim financid statements during FY 2001 (though not in the Company's
Forms 10-Q for the same periods), CA lists"expanded contract cost” for its FY 2001 net revenues, and for
the comparable FY 2000 quarters. This figure matches the discrepancy between the origindly reported
revenues and those recal culated for comparison to the FY 2001 quarters.

53.  Accordingto Merill Lynch andyst Peter Goldmacher, asreported in the Newsday
Online Edition on May 11, 2001, "Expanded Contract Cost" is the remaining value of contracts renewed
before their expiration, againgt which revenue must be netted.  Goldmacher reportedly opined that this
practice had "the potentia effect of overstating” revenues, becausein its press releases the Company gives
both total contract vaues, and revenues net of the"expanded contract costs.” Failing to remedy the double-
counting at al, as Computer Associates did for Fiscal 1999 and 2000, does far more than "potentialy™
overgtate revenues. It inflated both revenues and profits over a period of two years.

54. The reported and recd culated figures for the Fourth Quarter of Fiscal 2000 (for
which therewas no quarterly report) can be ca culated by subtracting from theannud figuresprovided inthe
2000 Form 10-K. From the original and reca culated revenue figures, the dollar amount and percent of
revenue overstatement caused by the double- counting of the unexpired portionsof re-rolled contractscan

be deduced. They are asfollows:

Originally Reported $1,222,000,000.00 $1,605,000,000.00 $1,812,000,000.00
Recalculated Figure $1,057,000,000.00  $1,465,000,000.00 $1,674,000,000.00
Inflation $ 165,000,000.00 $ 140,000,000.00 $ 138,000,000.00
Percentage Inflation 16% 10% 8%

12

$ 2,127,000,000.00

$ 1,907,000,000.00

$ 220,000,000.00

12%
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55.  Thedouble-counting of thisrevenuewasin violation of GAAP, whichisillugtrated
by the fact that the Company ceased the practice, without notice or explanation, when anew accounting
firm firgt had to opine on the accuracy of its financid statements. Neither the 2000 Form 10-K, nor the
subsequent Form 10-Q for the First Quarter of FY 2001 acknowledged that an accounting change was

made.

TheANew Business M odel@ and
"Pro Forma, Pro Rata" Accounting

56.  Withitsmainframe software revenue dependent on acquisition and extenson of old
licenses, and with its non-mainframe products failing, CA could no longer count on its old techniques to
show increasing revenue.

57.  The result was a spectacular collapse in revenue. Revenue, as reported in
conformity with GAAP, fel from $1.548 billionin the quarter ended December 31, 1999, to $663 millionin
the quarter ended December 31, 2000, a drop of 57%.

58.  Thedefendants ddiberately concedled this drop from the public by subgtituting a
separate set of financid statements for its GAAP financids, and gtating that it was doing so because of a
trangtion to aAnew business moded!.(

59. In two press releases on October 24 and 25, 2000, Computer Associates
announced its "new businessmodd.” CA said that, under the new moded, it would offer customers more
flexible terms, including month-to- month licenses.

60. The new mode, according to CA, would aso change its accounting, so that it
would have amore predictable revenue stream. Going forward, CA would recognize revenue for product
licenses under a subscription model, with the revenue spread ratably over the term of the contract --
reversing its policy of booking every possible dollar of revenue up front.

61. Infact, CA did not dter its actual sdles practices or license terms. Its customers

and competitors dike said as much to the New York Times:

But customers and competitors say the company continuesto useold saes
tactics and to offer old contract terms.
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"I have not heard anything that we would be paying monthly," said Andy
Olivenbaum, who is negotiating a new license for Florida's Northeast
Regiona Data Center, which processes records for the state.

"Certainly out inthefied they're dill sdlling theway they wayssold,” sad
Bob Beauchamp, president and chief executive of BMC Software, arival
mainframe software company. "To my knowledge, we have not run into
this, quote, new modd."

Former employees and andydts have avery different explanation for the
company's effort to focus Wall Street onits"new businessmodd." After
yearsof inflating revenue and profits, Computer Associates hasfindly run
out of accounting maneuvers, they say. Now, they add, it hopes to

persuade andyststo ignoreits standard accounting resultswhileit unravels
the messiit has created.

62.  Theactua purpose of the "new businessmodd" isto create an excuse for CA to
change its accounting practices to conced its drastic revenue |oss.

63.  When CA announced itsfinancid resultsfor the quarter ended December 31, 2000,
it was keegping two sets of financid results: one according to GAAP, and another set, which it called "pro
forma, pro rata," and which used its new technique.

64. However, CA:-s GAAP results were not even fully comparableto the prior periods,
because CA changed its accounting for new sales to a subscription modd, taking revenue over time.

65.  The effect of CA=snew GAAP accounting is to extend recognition of its current
sdes of software subscriptionsinto the future, so that asits new sales decling, it will be able to recognize
current revenue in the future. But the GAAP results can only gpply this change going forward, and do not
obscure the decline which has aready taken place. TheAproforma, pro rata) accounting operateson the
fiction that the Company had always operated on asubscription mode, so that revenue recognized on sdes
of licensesfrom severd years ago is counted in current and future quarters. This reporting does have the
effect of hiding the exigting decline, in addition to buoying future revenue figures.

66.  Asrequired by the SEC, CA filed a Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December
31, 2000. That Form 10Q includes both sets of financid statements.

67. In management's discussion of the GAAP revenues, which shows the huge

decrease, the drop in revenue was explained away:
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The decrease was a result of the Company'strangtion to anew business
modd during the third quarter of fiscd 2001 whereby clients are granted
flexible contractud terms and conditions with the result that product

revenue from such contractsis recognized prospectively over the term of

the contracts. Thenew modd alows customersto vary their software mix
astheir business needs change and providesthem with the freedom to use
avaiety of software products during the license period. The terms of

these new arangements are structured such that product revenue is

generdly recognized ratably over the term of the license. Customerswill

benefit from these new arrangements by finding moreflexibility inlicendang
the Company's software products, gaining animproved, cost- efedtiveway
of doing business, mapping the growth of their technol ogy to the growth of

their business, and alowing their coststo be more predictable. The new
businessmode will improvethevishility of the Company'srevenue sream
and will reduce the uncertainty of quarterly revenue since revenue will be
recognized ratably, rather than on aone-timebass. Inthefirst quarter of

the trangtion, gpproximately $140 million in revenue was recognized at

contract Sgning for contracts conforming to the Company's prior business
modd.

68.  The defendants instead touted the second set of financid results. Under these
results, the product revenue for the quarter ended December 31, 2000 was $1,284,000,000, amoderate
increase over the previous year's quarter, when revenue was $1,140,000,000".

69.  Theactud effect of the"proforma, prorata’ accounting can be seeninitseffect on
the past revenuefigures. For example, under GAAP, in the quarter ended December 31, 1999, CA sold
$1.548 hillion in software. Under the "pro forma, pro rata' method, in the same period, CA sold only
$1.14 billion -- a decrease of $408 million.

70.  The"proforma, proratd’ method of cal culating revenue was used to re-recognize
sdesfrom the past, spreading the revenue forward into present and future periods. The revenuefromold
sdes, now recognized ratably, was added to the meager new salesfigures, producing acceptable figures.
Combined with the reduction in previous revenues, this new method aso produced theilluson of growth.

71.  Theéeffect of the"pro forma, pro rata' accounting wasto recognize revenuesfrom
past sdesin present and future periods, obscuring adisastrousdrop in revenue. The difference between the
two methods can be graphicaly demongtrated in the following chart:

1 (totd revenue was dightly higher, encompassing some sarvice revenue)
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insat chart here
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DEFENDANTS FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS
AND THEIR EFFECT ON CA SECURITIES

False and Mideading Statements
Redated Tothe Wrap-and-Roll Contracts

72. In a press release dated May 27, 1999, defendants stated in the sub-headline,
"Client/Server Revenue Increases 29%, To $2.5 Billion For Year." Thisstatement wasfase and mideading
when made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants
were aware that the sales of client/server products (that is, software for distributed systems, such as
Unicenter) were atificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actualy experiencing growth
except that artificidly created by CA'swrap-and-roll scheme.

73. In the same May 27, 1999 press release, defendants went on to say:

Client/server revenue increased to $802 million as
compared to the $640 million recorded in the prior year.

74.  Thedaement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sles of client/server products (that is, software for distributed systems, such asUnicenter)
were atificaly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actualy experiencing growth except that
artificidly created by CA's wrap-and-roll scheme.

75. In its Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 1999, filed on May 28, 1999,

defendants stated:
Since its introduction in fiscd year 1997, Unicenter
TNG(R) (The Next Generation)TM has become the
industry's de facto standard for enterprise management
software.

76.  Thedatement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfa seand mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sales of Unicenter TNG, and its other software for distributed systems, were atificialy
inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, that many clients were unwilling to buy it unless it was included at

substantialy reduced or no cost with mainframe software, and that it was, in the words of a Meta Group
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anays (as quoted inthe New Y ork Timeson April 29, 2001), "pretty hardtofindinthewild." Therefore,
defendantsknew that thefigures posted for Unicenter sdleswere neither reflective of demand for, nor actua
use of, the product, and that it was therefore not the "de facto standard.”

77. In a press release dated July 20, 1999, defendants stated in the first sentence:

Driven by continuing demand for client/server products
and professond services, Computer Associates
International, Inc. (NY SE: CA) today announced record
operaing resultsfor the first quarter of fiscd Y ear 2000.

78.  Thegatement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sales of client/server products (that is, softwarefor distributed systems, such as Unicenter)
were atificaly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actualy experiencing growth except that
artificidly created by CA's wrap-and-roll scheme.

79. Inthe same July 20 pressrelease, defendants stated that, "[i]n the quarter, CA saw
itsclient/server revenue grow by 22%to $596 million.” Thisstatement wasfase and mideading when made
for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specificaly, defendantswere avarethat
the sles of client/server products (that is, software for digtributed systems, such as Unicenter) were
atificdly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actually experiencing growth except that
artificidly created by CA's wrap-and-roll scheme.

80. In its Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1999, filed on August 6,

defendants stated:

Total revenue for the quarter ended June 30, 1999
increased 17% or $175 million, over the prior year's
comparable quarter. The increase was primarily
dtributeble to growth in dient/server  revenue,
professonal services, and acquired products from
PAatinum. Client/server _revenue accounted for
approximately 49% of the Company'soverdl revenuefor
the fird quarter, led by Unicenter TNG (The Next
Generation), afamily of integrated business solutions for
monitoring and adminigtering Systems management across
multi- platform environments.
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8l.  Thedatementidentifiedinthe preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sales of client/server products (that is, software for distributed systems, such as Unicenter)
were atificaly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actualy experiencing growth except that
artificidly created by CA'swrap-and-roll scheme, and the portion of the Company'stota revenue attributed
to client/server products was d<o artificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts.

82. In apress release dated October 19, 1999, defendants stated:

Software for digributed systems continued its rapid
growth, increasng 35% to $816 million in the quarter.

Contributing to this growth was continuing demand for
Unicenter TNG and Jasmine ii. Newly integrated
Platinum products, including datawarehousing, repository
and IMS, DB2, and Oracletools, aso contributed to the
success of the quarter.

83.  Thedatementidentified inthe preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons st forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sales of software for distributed systems, such as Unicenter and Jasmineii, were artificidly
inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actualy experiencing growth except that artificidly
created by CA's wrap-and-roll scheme. Defendants, knowing of the wrap-and-roll scheme, were dso
aware that there was little or no "continuing demand for Unicenter TNG and Jasmineii.”

84. InitsForm 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 1999, filed on November 3,

1999, defendants stated:

There continues to be acceptance of the Company's
enterprise licensng plans, which offer clients increased
flexibility, and Unicenter TNG (The Next Generation), a
family of integrated business solutions for monitoring and
administering systems management across multi- platform
environments.

85.  Thedatementidentified inthe preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were

aware that the sales of software for distributed systems, such as Unicenter and Jasmineii, were artificidly
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inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actualy experiencing growth except that atificaly
created by CA's wrap-and-roll scheme. Defendants, knowing of the wrap-and-roll scheme, were dso
aware that there was little or no "acceptance” of Unicenter, and that many clients would not purchase it
unlessit was provided & little or no additiona cost with mainframe software.

86. In a press rel ease dated January 26, 2000, defendants stated:

Digtributed systemsrevenuein the quarter increased 45%
from lagt year to $898 million, while OS/390 revenue
increased 19%to $776 million. Revenue from distributed
systems product and services accounted for 49% of totd
revenue. OS390 revenue was 43% of the total.

87.  Thedatement identified inthe preceding paragraph wasfa se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sales of software for distributed systems, such as Unicenter and Jasmineii, were artificidly
inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts.

88.  Thesame January 26, 2000 press rel ease went on to quote defendant Kumar:

"Over hdf our revenue in the quarter was directly
attributabl e to distributed systems products and services'
said CA President and COO Sanjay Kumar. We
enjoyed tremendous competitive success in the areas of
digtributed systems management, Internet security, Sorage
management and DB2/IMStools.”

89.  Thedatementidentified inthe preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
awarethat the sdes of softwarefor ditributed sysemswere artificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
and that CA was not experiencing "tremendous competitive success' withitsdistributed systems products,
but was artificidly creating the appearance of such successby giving away these productswith its mainframe
software.

90. Inits Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 1999, filed on February 11,

2000, defendants stated:
The product revenue achievement and growth over the
prior vear's comparable quater were primarily
atributable to demand for the Company's enterprise
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licensng plans, offering dients increased flexibility; the
addition of Platinum products, and demand for Unicenter
TNG (The Next Generation), a family of integrated
busness solutions for monitoring and adminigering
systems management across multi- platform environments.
These factors accounted for the increase in product
revenue of goproximady $360 million in the third
quarter.

91.  Thedatementidentifiedinthe preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
awarethat the sdes of softwarefor ditributed sysemswere artificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
and that the " demand for Unicenter TNG was actudly very wesk, with cusomersunwilling to buy it unlessit
wasincluded at low or no additiona cogt with mainframe software. Therefore, the Company's performance
could not be attributed to demand for Unicenter.

92. In apress release dated May 15, 2000, defendants stated: " Distributed Systems
revenue increased 43% to $1.07 hillion as compared to the $302 million recorded in the prior yeer. . . "
This statement was fal se and mid eading when made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45,
infra. More specificaly, defendants were aware that the sales of software for distributed systems were
atificdly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, and were not actually experiencing growth except that
artificidly created by CA's wrap-and-roll scheme.

93. In its Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2000, filed on June 9, 2000,

defendants stated:

Sinceitsintroduction in fiscd year 1997, Unicenter TNG
has become the industry's de facto standard for
enterprise management of software.

94.  Thegatement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfa seand mideadingwhen
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sales of Unicenter TNG, and its other software for distributed systems, were atificialy
inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts, that dientswere unwilling to buy it unlessit wasincluded at subgtantialy

reduced or no cost with mainframe software, and that it was, in the words of a Meta Group analys (as
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quoted inthe New Y ork Timeson April 29, 2001), "pretty hard tofindinthewild." Therefore, defendants
knew that the figures posted for Unicenter saleswere neither reflective of demand for, nor actud use of, the
product, and that it was therefore not the "de facto standard.”

95.  The 2000 Form 10-K went on to say:

Total contract vaue for the year ended March 31, 2000
increased 29%, or $1.51 hillion, over the prior year.

Excluding an approximate $107 million negetive foreign
exchange impact, total contract vaue increased 31% to
$6.87 hillion. Net revenue increased 31%, or $1.44
billion for the year. The license revenue increase was
primarily attributable to growth in digtributed platform
product fees principaly Unicenter TNG, a family of
integrated busness solutions for monitoring and
adminigering systems management across multi- platform
environments, the addition of PLATINUM products and
the demand for eCommerce solutions.  The distributed
platform accounted for 50% of the Company's overdl

year-to-date contract value, increasing 35%, or $870
million, over the prior fisca year.

96.  Thedatement identified inthe preceding paragraph wasfa se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sdles of software for distributed systems, including Unicenter, were atificidly inflated by
wrap-and-roll contracts, that both theincreasein sdlesof distributed systems products, and their portion of
the Company'soverdl contract value, were artificialy created by the wrap-and-roll scheme, and that since
the strength of distributed systems software wasillusory, these sdleswere not responsiblefor CA'soveral
revenue growth.

97.  The 2000 Form 10-K went on to say:

Therewas continued emphasi s on adapting and enhancing
products for the digtributed processing environment, in
particular Unicenter TNG, Jasmine ii, and Neugents, as
well as the broadening of the Company's eCommerce
product offerings, and additiond expenses related to
development efforts of products obtained through the
acquigtion of PLATINUM.

98.  Thedatement identified inthe preceding paragraph wasfad se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
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awarethat the sales of softwarefor didributed sysemswere atificialy inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
and that CA was not experiencing success in sdlling these products except through its wrap-and-rall
scheme.  Therefore, the comments regarding "continued emphasis’ on these products were fase and
mideading in the absence of disclosure of the truth regarding the demand for and saes of these products.

99. In its Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2000, filed on August 3, 2000,

defendants stated:

The didributed platform revenue accounted for
approximately 53% of the Company's overal contract
vaue for the firg quarter, led by Unicenter TNG (The
Next Generdion), afamily of integrated business solutions
for monitoring and administering systems management
across multi- platform environments.

100. Thedaement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfad seand mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
awarethat the sales of softwarefor digtributed sysemswereatificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
and that their portion of the Company's platform revenue was atificialy created by the wrap-and-rall
scheme,

101. InitsForm 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2000, filed on November

14, 2000, defendants stated:

License fees benefitted [sc] from higher distributed
platform product fees, offset by a decrease in OS390
product licenses. The digributed platform revenue
accounted for approximatedy 55% of the Company's
overdl contract value for the second quarter, led by
Unicenter TNG (The Next Generation), a family of
integrated busness solutions for monitoring and
administering systems management across multi- platform
environments.

102. Thedatement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfa se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
awarethat the sdes of softwarefor digtributed sysemswere artificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
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and that both the increase in sdes of distributed systems products, and their portion of the Company's
overal contract value, were artificidly created by the wrap-and-roll scheme.
103. InitsForm 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2000, filed on February 7,

2000, defendants stated:

Therewas continued emphasi s on adapting and enhancing
products for the digtributed processing environment, in
paticular Unicenter TNG (The Next Generation),
Jagmine ii, Neugents, as well as broadening of the
Company's e-commerce product offerings, and additiond
expense related to development efforts of products
obtained through the acquigtion of Sterling.

104. Thedaement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfd se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
awarethat the sdes of softwarefor ditributed sysemswere artificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
and that CA was not experiencing success in selling these products except through its wrap-and-roll
scheme. Therefore, the comments regarding "continued emphasis' on these products were fase and
mideading in the absence of disclosure of the truth regarding the demand for and saes of these products.

105. OnJanuary 22, 2001, the Company made available on itswebsite a supplemental
information packet which discussed itsfinancia resultsfor the quarter ending December 31, 2000 in detall.
In those materias, the Company represented that its product revenue by platform was 49% mainframe
(computersusing IBM's OS/390 operating system), and 42% distributed systems, as compared to the prior
year's quarter, where its sales were 50% mainframe and 35% distributed systems.

106. On July 23, 2001, the Company made available on its webste a supplementd
information packet which discussed itsfinancid resultsfor the quarter ended June 30, 2001, indetail. This
supplement stated that mainframe software accounted for $690 million, or 48% of total revenue, and
distributed systems software for $659 million, or 46%.

107. Thedaement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfd se and mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
aware that the sdes of softwarefor distributed sysemswereatificidly inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
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and that both the increase in sdes of distributed systems products, and their portion of the Company's
overdl contract vaue, were atificidly created by the wrap-and-roll scheme.

108.  OnCOctober 18, 2001, the Company made available onitswebsite asupplementa
information packet which discussed itsfinancid resultsfor the quarter ended September 31, 2001, indetall.

This supplement stated that mainframe software accounted for $682 million, or 47% of total revenue, and
distributed systems software for $678 million, or 47%.

109. Thedaement identified in the preceding paragraph wasfd seand mideading when
made for the reasons set forth in Paragraphs 34 through 45, infra. More specifically, defendants were
awarethat the sdles of softwarefor distributed sysemswere artificially inflated by wrap-and-roll contracts,
and that both the increase in sdes of distributed systems products, and their portion of the Company's
overal contract vaue, were artificidly created by the wrap-and-roll scheme.

110. These gatements were materidly false and mideading when made because the
portion of revenue attributed to distributed system productswas arbitrarily created, and thesereported sdes
were the result of the wrap-and-roll contracts offered by CA, in which non-mainframe products were
bundled with extenson of mainframe software licenses & little or no additiona cost.

111. Thedaedfiguresfor the sdesof digtributed system software crested themideading
impression that there was demand for these products, that they were sdling independently of other
products, were being implemented and were gaining market share, when in fact this was not the case,

112. The dtated figures for the sdes of distributed system software created the false
impression that the Company had successfully escaped its dependence on the mainframe market and

trangitioned to sdlling software for distributed systems, when in fact this was not the case.
False and Mideading Statements

Relating to Double-Counting Revenue

From Re-Rolled Contracts

113. OnMay 28, 1999, CA filed its SEC Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,
1999. That filing ligted the annud revenue as $5353 million.
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114. This statement was false at the time it was made because it included the entire
licenserevenue from renewed license agreements, but did not reduce thisfigure by the unexpired portion of
the prior license, thereby double-counting the revenuefor the portion of the license which was unexpired a
the time of renewa.

115. On May 27, 1999, CA issued a press release which gave the revenue for the
quarter ended December 31, 1999 at $1,629 million. For the reasons stated in the preceding paragraph,
this statement was false when made.

116. OnAugust 6, 1999, CA filed its SEC Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
1999. That filing listed the quarterly revenue as $1,222 million.

117. This statement was false at the time it was made because it included the entire
licenserevenue from renewed license agreements, but did not reduce thisfigure by the unexpired portion of
the prior license, thereby double-counting the revenuefor the portion of the license which was unexpired a
the time of renewd.

118. Computer Associates|ater caculated what the revenuefor this period would have
been if the double-counting had been diminated, and presented that figurein the Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2000, for purposes of comparison. The correct figure thus presented was $1,057 million.
Therefore, the revenuefor the First Quarter of Fisca Y ear 2000 wasinflated by $165 million, and inflation
of 16%.

119. OnJduly 20, 1999, CA issued apressrelease which gave therevenuefor the quarter
ended June 30, 1999 at $1,222 million. For the reasons stated in the preceding two paragraphs, this
Statement was false when made.

120. On November 3, 1999, CA filed its SEC Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 1999. That filing listed the quarterly revenue as $1,605 million.

121. This statement was false at the time it was made because it included the entire

license revenue from renewed license agreements, but did not reduce thisfigure by the unexpired portion of
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the prior license, thereby double-counting the revenuefor the portion of the license which was unexpired a
the time of renewd.

122. Computer Associates|ater caculated what the revenuefor this period would have
been if the double-counting had been eliminated, and presented that figurein the Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2000, for purposes of comparison. The correct figure thus presented was $1,465
million. Therefore, the revenue for the Second Quarter of Fiscal Y ear 2000 was inflated by $140 million,
and inflation of 10%.

123.  On October 19, 1999, CA issued a press release which gave the revenue for the
quarter ended September 30, 1999 at $1,605 million. For the reasons stated in the preceding two
paragraphs, this statement was false when made.

124. On February 11, 2000, CA filed its SEC Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 1999. That filing listed the quarterly revenue as $1,812 million.

125. This statement was false at the time it was made because it included the entire
licenserevenue from renewed license agreements, but did not reduce thisfigure by the unexpired portion of
the prior license, thereby double-counting the revenuefor the portion of the license which was unexpired a
the time of renewd.

126. Computer Associates|ater caculated what the revenuefor this period would have
been if the double-counting had been eliminated, and presented that figurein the Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended December 31, 2000, for purposes of comparison. The correct figure thus presented was $1,674
million. Therefore, therevenuefor the Third Quarter of Fisca Y ear 2000 wasinflated by $138 million, and
inflation of 8%.

127.  OnJanuary 26, 2000, CA issued a press release which gave the revenue for the
quarter ended December 31, 1999 at $1,812 million. For the reasons stated in the preceding two
paragraphs, this statement was false when made.

128. On May 15, 2000, CA issued a press release giving the revenue for the quarter
ended March 31, 2000 at $2127 million.
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129. This statement was false at the time it was made because it included the entire
licenserevenuefrom renewed license agreements, but did not reduce thisfigure by the unexpired portion of
the prior license, thereby double-counting the revenuefor the portion of the license which was unexpired a
the time of renewd.

130. When the Company filed its Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2000, the
annua revenue listed was $6,103 million, afigure which isequa to the "net revenue® figures provided for
comparison in the FY 2001 Forms 10-Q, plus $1,907. This figure reflects the correct revenue for this
period, without double-counting from re-rolled licenses. Therefore, the revenue for the FourthQuarter of

Fiscal Year 2000 wasinflated by $220 million, and inflation of 12%.

False and Mideading Statements
Related To the" New Business M odel"

131.  On October 24, 2000, the Company issued a press rel ease announcing resultsfor
the quarter ended September 30, 2000. This press release aso disclosed that the Company would be
moving to a new business modd.

132. The October 24 press release quoted Kumar as saying:

In addition, as part of our focused effort to unlock
shareholder vdue, we ae very excited about the
progressive new business modd that we will unvell on
Wednesday morning. Thisnew mode promisesto ddliver
even greater long-term sustainable valuefor shareholders,
customers and CA employees.

133. The October 25 press rel ease contained the following statements:

Asthefirg eBusiness solutions provider to movefroman
enterprise license modd to a subscription license modd,
CA will endble clients to determine the length and dollar
vaue of thair softwarelicenseand vary their software mix
as their business and technology needs change. Clients
will have the freedom to use a vaiety of software
products of their choice during contracted periods
incduding month-to-month--and within fixed dollar vaues.

Clients will be dble to flexibly define the length and the
dollar vaue of their contracts, with discounts determined
by both parameters. The new contractswill be supported
by a ampler and shorter license agreement, further
reducing the cost of doing business.
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"This new modd strengthens our competitive pogtion
agang hardware venders who bundle software and
sarvices, and gives us aleg up on independent software
vendors who cling to the traditiond enterprise modd,"
sad Kumar.

Under thismodel, CA will account for contracted revenue
over the life of the license term, thereby generaing
tremendous residud vaue at the end of each quarter.
As clients adopt this model over time and CA shifts its
operations accordingly, the accumulated residual vadue
will grow quarter-by-quarter, thereby enhancing
predictability and vighility into future performance as
resdud vaueturnsinto revenue month-to- month over the
contract term.

To ensure that investors and other interested parties can
eadly compare past and future performance, CA will
supply pro forma, pro rata financid information. This
information will be the basi's upon which CA will offer its
guidance and estimates.

134. Asst forthin && 56-71 above, these statements were al materidly fase and
mideading. The Company's"new businessmodd" was actualy no more than achangefrom afront-loaded
accounting system, to a back-|oaded accounting system, permitting the Company to obscure an enormous
decline in revenue.

135. The saements identified in & 133 above were fase and mideading when made
because the Company did not disclosethat, in addition to creating "accumulated resdud vaue' inthefuture,
the new accounting method, when projected to prior periods, would count revenue from previous license
sdesin present and future quarters, obscuring the effect of current and future decreasesin sales.

136. The satements identified in & 133 above were fase and mideading when made
because the Company did not disclosethat the "pro forma, pro ratafinancia information” would recognize
revenue from past license salesin present and future quarters, obscuring the effect of decreasesin current
sdes.

137.  On January 22, 2001, the Company issued a press release which gave financid

resultsfor the quarter ended December 31, 2000. The headlineof thispressreleaseread, "CA BEATS Q3
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EPSESTIMATESBY $.02" (capitdizationin origind). The subhead reed, "Product revenue jumps 13%,
EPS Up 31%"

138. The press release began,

Regping the benefits of an innovative busness modd
designed to provide greater flexibility to customers, to
improve revenue predictability, and to unlock sharehol der
vaue, Computer Associates Internationd, Inc. (NY SE:
CA) today reported financid results for its third fiscd
quarter.

139. The January 22, 2001 press release aso contained the following statements:

The results, reported on a pro formapro ratabasis, beat
analysts consensus earnings per share estimates of $.40
by $.02. For the quarter ended December 31, 2000, on
apro formapro rata basis:

# Product revenueincreased 13%t0 $1.284 billion
from $1.140 billion in the prior year's fiscd
quarter, exceeding company estimates.
Reflecting the sdeof the Sterling Federd Systems
Group to Northrup Grumman, professiond
sarvicesrevenue declined by 37%. Totd revenue
increased 5% to $1.404 hillion from $1.332
billion.

# Operating net incomefor the December 31, 2000
quarter increased 28 percent fromthe prior year's
fisca quarter to $247 million.

# Third quarter operating earnings per share
(diluted), exclusve of acquigtion amortization
g(;ect and specid charges, increased 31% to

A42.

CA aso announced that $629 million of thetotal contract
vaue concluded in the quarter was not recognized as
revenue for the quarter ending December 31, 2000.
Under CA'snew businessmodd, thisResdud Vaduewill
result in actua product revenue being recognized over the
term of the underlying contracts.

For the nine months ended December 31, 2000 on apro
forma pro ratabass.

# Revenue increased 7% to $4.125 hillion.

# Operating net income increased 17% to $677
million.

# Operating earnings per share (diluted), exclusve
of acquigtion amortization effect and specid
charges, increased 19% to $1.14.
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Our advanced software portfolio, reputation for
innovative solutions and flexible new busness modd is
making it eesier for our customers to do businesswith us
in the New Economy."

"Theresdud vadue earned thisquarter and in each quarter
going forward represents an annuity to CA shareholders
that transcends quarterly performance” sad Kumar.
"Building resdud vaue will strengthen shareholder vdue
through improved vishility and gability of future revenue
streams.”

CA'sreported resultsareavailablein Table 2 of thisnews
release. These results reflect operations in part under
CA's new business model and historical business model
and, therefore, make the current quarter results not
comparable to historicd results. For thisreason, CA is
providingitsfinancid resultsonapro formapro ratabass
as announced on October 25, 2000.

140. OnApril 16, 2001, the Company issued apressrelease which gavefinancia results
for the quarter ended March 31, 2001. The headline of that pressreleaseread, "CA SaysNew Business
Mode Rules, Q4 Rocks."

141. The subheading of that press release read as follows:.
Preliminary License Revenue and Operating EPS Besat
Both Company and Consensus Estimates Company To
Hold Webcast at 5PM EDT Today

142. The April 16 press release dso contained the following statements:

Theresultsreflect the success of the company'seBusiness
drategy and customer-centric Business Modd.

On a pro forma pro rata basis for the quarter ended
March 31, 2001, Product revenue is estimated to be
approximately $1.338 hillion, as compared with $1.209
billion for the prior year's fourth quarter.

Tota revenue is estimated to be approximately $1.440
billion increasing from $1.390 billion in the prior year's
fourth quarter. Fourth quarter operating earnings per
share (diluted), exclusive of acquisition amortization effect
and specid charges, are anticipated to be gpproximatdy
$.47 as compared with $.34 in the prior year's fourth
quarter.
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CA dso anticipates that gpproximately $1.3 billion of
Resdud Vdue was concluded in the quarter. Residud
Vadue reflects the vaue of contractud commitments not
reported asrevenuein the current quarter. Such Residua
Vaduewill be amortized into revenue in future periods.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, on a pro
forma bags, the company expects to report Product
revenues of approximately $5.048 billion as compared
with $4.492 billion for the year ended March 31, 2000.
Totd revenue for the full year is expected to be
approximately $5.565 hillion as compared to $5.256
billion in fiscd 2000. Operating earnings per share
(dliluted), exclusve of acquisition amortization effect and
specid charges, are anticipated to be approximeatey
$1.61 compared to $1.31 for the prior year.

143. The press release quoted Kumar as saying, "We are extremely pleased with our
revenue and operating EPS performance in Q4, despite difficult economic conditions.”

144. Each of the statements liged in && 137-142 above were materidly fase and
mideading because, as st forthin && 56- 71 above, the Company's " new businessmode” was actudly no
more than achange from afront-|oaded accounting system, to aback-|oaded accounting system, permitting
the Company to obscure an enormous declinein revenue.

145. The Kumar's stated satisfaction with its fourth quarter results was mideading,
because neither he nor the Company discussed thefinancia results as caculated in conformity with GAAP.

146. TheCompany did provide GAAPfinancidsin atableattached to its April 16 press
release, but in the pressre ease, the Company made the following mideading statement designed to distract

the investing public from the import of those results:

These results reflect operations in part under CA's new
Business Modd and higtorical Business Modd, and,
therefore, make the current quarter results not
comparable to historical results. For this reason, CA is
providing its financid results on a pro forma, pro rata
basis.

147. On October 24, before CA'sfirst announcement of its"new businessmodd," CA

common stock closed at $26.69 per share, on volume of 2.7 million shares, avolume generdly congstent

32 1261252



with the preceding weeks. On the 25" of October, 2000, 9.7 million shares were traded and the stock
closed at $28.69. On the 25, after CA explained the "new businessmodd," 8.8 million shares changed
hands, and the stock closed at $31. In two days, the stock rose 16% on severa timesits norma volume.

148. The New York Times questioned CA:s accounting on the front page of the

Business section, on Sunday, April 29, 2001, in an article quoted extensively above. But on April 30,
2001, CA releases a sevenpage response on its web ste, denying the alegations of the Times article,
which it said Acontained mideading and at times false information. @

SCIENTER

149. Defendants knew, or would have known but for their reckless disregard of facts
readily availableto them, that the satements enumerated above were materidly fase and mideading when
made. The Anew business model was approved by CA:s senior management, including each of the
Individua Defendants, beforeitsadoption. CA-=ssenior management and each of the Individua Defendants
were aware that the Company:s statements about the Anew business modeli were materialy fase and
mideading.

150. CA:s Apro forma, pro ratal unaudited accounting was planned and adopted by
CA:=ssenior management, including each of the Individua Defendants. CA:s senior management and each
of the Individual Defendants was aware or recklesdy disregarded that the reporting of the Company-s
finandd results under this method were materidly fase and mideading.

151. Thededineinthe Company:srevenue and thefailure of the Company to penetrate
the ditributed systems market were centrd to the Company-=s business, and senior management, including
each Individua Defendants, knew of these circumstances or recklesdy disregarded them.

152. Asfurther evidence of Defendant=s scienter, in order to hide from the public the
deteriorating financia condition of CA, Defendants carried out the course of conduct described below:

153.  According to The New Y ork Times, reporting on March 20, 2001, CA conducted

afirm-wide layoff in January, 2001 and disguised it as individua performance-based firings.
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154. Asearly asJanuary 19, 2001, Newsday reported that sourceswithin the Company
sad layoffs had aready begun, and could trim up to 20% of the Company's sdes force. However, CA
declined to comment.

155. According to the Wal Street Journal on March 21, 2000, the Company's
workforce shrunk from 20,000 in December, 2000, to 18,000 in January. The Company explained the
discrepancy, according to the Journd, as the result of divesting its Sterling subsidiary’s Federal Systemns
Division, but that division only employed 1,200 people, leaving adiscrepancy of amost athousand people.

156.  According to the New Y ork Times on March 20, 2001, hundreds of employees
around the nation were abruptly summoned into a room with their supervisor and amember of human
resources, and fired. Thefirings were terse and gpparently scripted. The employees were told that their
firings were performance-based, and that they would receive no severance package.

157. However, according to the Times article, some of the dismissed employees, like
Rick Sokoll of Frisco, Texas, had recently received excellent performance evauations.

158. CA immediady denied that it had engaged in "wholesdelayoffs," according tothe
Wall Street Journa on March 21.

159. However, about a week &ter the March 20 Times article, CA reconsidered its
position. OnMarch 28, the Timesreported that, while CA till denied having carried out afirm-widelayoff,

CA spokesman Bob Gordon said:

We are reviewing the termination of the folks who left in
January to determine if anyone who was digible for
severance didn't receiveit.

160. TheTimessood by itsorigina postion, reiterating the alegations made by about a
dozen terminated employees. that CA had disguised a firm-wide workforce reduction as unrelated
performance-based firings.

161. TheTimesdisclosed on March 28, 2001 that three of the executivesinvolvedinthe

layoffs had corroborated the terminated workers accounts. The Times reported them as confirming:

The layoffs were directed by top management, they said,
and were tightly scripted by the company's human
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resources department so the company could avoid paying
severance packagesto fired employees.

162. The hidden layoffs dso came after CA announced its "new business modd," and
before it reported the financid results for the first period following the purported change.

163. Thecdlandegtine layoff indicates that the defendants were willing to risk enormous
employer ligbility to trim costs without disclosing to the investing public that CA needed to do so. This
desperate cost-cutting technique is consgtent with managers who recognize that their Company's
performance is in an darming downturn, and is not congstent with the impresson of moderate growth
creeted by the "pro forma, pro ratd’ financia statements.

164. Since the layoff, the Company has tried and failed to raise cash through a debt
offering, and been forced to use one credit line to pay another, facts which indicate that CA=s management
areacutely aware of the Company-struefinancia condition. On February 6, 2002, the Company withdrew
aplanned debt offering. On February 20, 2001, amid concernsthat the Company had drawn on areserve
credit line to pay operating expenses, the Company announced that, in fact, it had drawn $600 millionon
one credit line to pay down another. Moody:s Investor Service andyst John Moore told Dow Jones on

February 21 that this was Anot something you can do for quarters on end or for the whole year.(

CLASSACTION ALLEGATIONS

165. Paintiffsbring thisaction asaclass action pursuant to Federa Rules of Civil Procedure 23(a) and
(b)(3) on behdf of aclasscongsting of al personswho, during the period May 28, 1999 through February
22, 2002, inclusive, purchased Computer Associates common stock or call options or sold Computer
Associates put options, and who were damaged thereby (the "Class'). Excluded from the Class are the
defendants, dl of the officers, directors, employees and partners thereof, members of their immediate
familiesand their legd representatives, heirs, predecessors, successors and assignsand any entity inwhich

any of the foregoing has a controlling interest.
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166. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of al members is impracticable. As of
February 22, 2002, the Company had morethan 576 million shares of its common stock outstanding. While
the exact number of Class membersisunknown to plaintiffsat thistime and can only be ascertained through
aopropriate discovery, plantiffsbeieve thereare, a aminimum, thousands of members of the Classlocated
throughout the United States. Throughout the Class Period, Computer Associates common stock was
actively traded on New York Stock Exchange and the Company's options were traded on at least the
American Stock Exchange.

167. Common questions of law and fact exist as to al members of the Class and
predominate over any questions affecting soldy individual members of the Class. Among the questions of
law and fact common to the Class are:

a Whether the federa securities lawswere violated by defendants acts and
omissons as dleged herein;

b. Whether statements made by defendantsto the investing public during the
Class Period misrepresented and/or omitted materid facts about the financid condition of Computer
Associates,

C. Whether defendants acted knowingly or recklesdy inmaking materidly fase
and mideading statements during the Class Period,;

d. Whether the market prices of the Company's stock and options were
atificidly inflated or distorted during the Class Period because of defendants conduct complained of herein;

and
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e Whether the members of the Class have sustained damagesand, if so, the
proper measure of damages.

168. PHantiff'scdamsaretypicd of the clams of the members of the Class asthey and
members of the Class sustained damages arising out of the defendants wrongful conduct in violation of
federd securities laws as complained of herein.

169. Pantiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class
and have retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation. Haintiff has no
interests antagonigtic to or in conflict with those of the Class.

170. A cdass action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of al members of the Class isimpracticable. Furthermore,
because the damages suffered by individua Classmembersmay berdétively smal, the expense and burden
of individud litigation make it impossible for the Class membersindividudly to redressthe wrongs doneto

them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE:
FRAUD ON THE MARKET DOCTRINE

171.  Hantiff will rdy, inpart, upon the presumption of reliance established by thefraud-
on-the-market doctrine in that:
a defendants made fd se and mideading Satements of materid fact, andfaled

to disclose materid facts, during the Class Period,;
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b. the misstatements and omissons were materid,;

C. the securities and options of the Company traded in efficient and open
markets (excluding the effects of fraud): the Company was followed by numerous mgor anayds, the
Company's common stock met the requirementsfor listing, and waslisted and actively traded onthe NY SE
and its options were traded on & least the American Stock Exchange; as a regulated issuer, Computer
Associatesfiled periodic public reports with the SEC; and Computer Associates regularly communicated
with public investors via edablished market communication mechanisms, including through regular
disseminations of press releases on the nationd circuits of mgor newswire services,

d. the misstatements and omissions aleged would tend to induce areasonable
investor to migudge the vaue of the Company's securities; and

e Paintiff and members of the Class purchased their Computer Associates
stock and cal options, or sold their Computer Associates put options, between the time defendants
misrepresented or failed to disclose materia facts and the time the true facts were disclosed, without
knowledge of the omitted facts.

172.  Based upontheforegoing, Plaintiff and other membersof the Classareentitledtoa
presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market price for the Company's securities.
COUNT I

VIOLATION OF SECTION 10(b) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AND
RULE 10b-5 OF THE SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

173. Paintiff repeats and redlleges each and every alegation contained intheforegoing

paragraphs asif fully set forth herein.
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174.  ThisCount isasserted againgt the Defendants and is based upon Section 10(b) of
the 1934 Act, 15 U.S.C. " 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

175. During the Class Period, the Defendants directly engaged in a common plan,
scheme, and unlawful course of conduct, pursuant to which it knowingly or recklesdy engaged in acts,
practices, and courses of business which operated as afraud and deceit upon plaintiff and the other
members of the Class, and made various deceptive and untrue statements of materia facts and omitted to
date materid facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not mideading to plaintiff and the other members of the Class. The purpose and
effect of said scheme, plan, and unlawful course of conduct was, among other things, to induce plaintiff and
the other members of the Classto purchase CA common stock during the Class Period & artificidly inflated
prices.

176. During the Class Period, the Defendants, pursuant to said scheme, plan, and
unlawful course of conduct, knowingly and recklessly issued, caused to be issued, participated in the
issuance of , the preparation and issuance of deceptive and materidly false and mideading satementsto the
investing public as particularized above.

177. Asarealt of the disssminaion of the fase and mideading Satements set forth
above, the market price of CA common stiock was artificialy inflated during the Class Period. Inignorance
of the fase and mideading nature of the statements described above and the deceptive and manipulative
devices and contrivances employed by said Defendants, plaintiff and the other membersof the Classrelied,

to their detriment, on the integrity of the market price of the stock in purchasing CA common stock. Had
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plaintiff and the other members of the Classknown the truth, they would not have purchased said shares or
would not have purchased them at the inflated prices that were paid.

178.  Haintiff and the other membersof the Class have suffered subgtantia damagesasa
result of the wrongs herein dleged in an amount to be proved &t trid.

179. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants directly violated Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder in thet it: (a) employed devices, schemes, and
artificesto defraud; (b) made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state materia factsnecessary
in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
mideading; or (C) engaged in acts, practices, and acourse of businesswhich operated asafraud and deceit
upon plaintiff and the other members of the Classin connection with their purchases of CA common stock
during the Class Period.

COUNT I

For Violation Of Section 20(a) Of The Exchange Act
(Againg the Individual Defendants)

180. Paintiff repeats and redleges each and every dlegation contained above asif fully

st forth heran.
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181. Thelndividua Defendants acted as controlling persons of the Company within the
meaning of section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as dleged herein. By virtue of ther high-leve positions,
participation in and/or awareness of the Company:s operaions, and/or intimate knowledge of the
Company's products, sales, accounting, plansand implementation thereof, theindividual defendantshad the
power to influence and control and did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of
the Company, including the content and dissemination of the various satements that plaintiff contends are
fdse and mideading. The Individua Defendants were provided with or had unlimited accessto copies of
the Company's reports, press reeases, public filings and other statements aleged by plaintiff to be
mideading prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent the
issuance of the statements or cause the statements to be corrected.

182. Inparticular, theIndividud Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in
the day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, are presumed to have had the power to control
or influence the particular satements giving riseto the securities violations as dleged herein, and exercised
the same.

183. By virtueof ther position as controlling persons, the Individua Defendantsarelidde
pursuant to section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. Asadirect and proximate result of the wrongful conduct,
plantiff and other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the
Company's securities during the Class Period.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, on his own behaf and on behdf of the Class, prays for judgment as

follows,
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A. Declaring this action to be a proper class action and certifying plaintiff as class
representative under Rule 23 of the Federa Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. Awarding compensatory damagesin favor of plaintiff and the other membersof the
Class againg the Defendants for the damages sustained as aresult of the wrongdoings of the Defendants,
together with interest thereon;

C. Awarding plaintiff thefeesand expensesincurred in thisaction, including reesonable

alowance of feesfor plaintiff's atorneys, and experts,

D. Granting extraordinary equitable and/or injunctive relief as permitted by law,
equity and federal and state statutory provisions sued on hereunder, including attaching, impounding,
imposing a constructive trust upon or otherwise restricting the proceeds of Defendants' trading

activities or their other assets so as to assure that plaintiff has an effective remedy; and

E Granting such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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JURY DEMAND

Faintiff demands atrid by jury on dl issues so triable.

DATED: New York, New Y ork

February 25, 2002

WOLF HALDENSTEIN ADLER
FREEMAN & HERZ LLP

By:
Fred Taylor Isquith (FI 6782)
Gregory M. Nespole (GN 6820)
Thomas H. Burt (TB 7601)

270 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10016
(212) 545-4600

Bruce G. Murphy, Esqg.

Law Offices of Bruce G. Murphy
265 Llwyds Lane

Vero Beach, FL 32963

(561) 231-4202

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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